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Wiggins, Evy

Subject: FW: ASIC Investigation

From: > 
Sent: Monday, December 7, 2020 10:56 AM 
To: Adam Grimley < > 
Subject: Re: ASIC Investigation  
  
Adam   
Thank you for updating me below, confirming I am in agreement with the proposed. 
 
Many thanks 

 
Note: This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and subject to copyright. They may contain privileged information. If 
you are not the intended recipient please delete the message and notify the sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter 
or disclose this email or its attachments without authorisation. The company and any related or associated companies do not 
accept any liability in connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data 
corruption, delay, interruption, unauthorised access or unauthorised amendment. Any views expressed in this email and any 
attachments do not necessarily reflect the views of the company or the views of any of our related or associated companies 

 

On 7 Dec 2020, at 8:31 am, adam grimley <  wrote: 
 
Hi , 
  
I refer to our discussion on Saturday 5th December 2020. 
  
I am writing to you i  . 
  
I confirm that, pursuant to my appointment by Melissa under an enduring power of attorney, I am 
currently engaging on Melissa’s behalf in the Federal Court proceedings ASIC has commenced 
against Melissa and her company. Pursuant to those proceedings, Melissa’s assets, including her 
bank accounts, have been frozen by an asset preservation order made by the Court. Those orders 
allow for Melissa’s reasonable living expenses (in particular her liabilities for maintaining her 
household and properties) and legal costs to be paid from the frozen assets. I am proposing to make 
an application to the Court for those orders to provide for the amounts in which such funds can be 
made available. 
  

. 
  
Thank you 
 
Adam 

 

16



1

Wiggins, Evy

From: Harris, Scott
Sent: 04 December 2020 15:54
To: Emman Farroukh
Cc: Nicolette Bearup; Marina Kofman; Wiggins, Evy
Subject: NSD1220/2020 - Caddick & Anor ats ASIC

Dear Ms Farroukh, 
 
We refer to the Orders made by the Court on 27 November 2020, and in particular, order 1 which requires the First 
Defendant’s former solicitor, Ms Jenny Williamson, to notify the plaintiff and the Court whether she considers she is 
able to appear on behalf of the First Defendant by 4pm on 4 December 2020. We anticipate that Ms Williamson will 
give the required notification of her position, but we also consider it is appropriate that we also advise the Plaintiff 
and the Court of our position. 
 
We also refer to our correspondence in relation to our client’s application to QCAT in relation to the EPOA.  
 
We confirm that it is our intention to continue to act for Mr Grimley in relation to the Proceeding, subject to the 
validation of the EPOA by QCAT. While it is uncertain whether QCAT will have determined the matter by 8 December 
2020 when this matter is next listed before this Court, it is our intention to appear before the Court on that day with 
Mr Sulan of Counsel, at least on a provisional basis.  
 
We propose to send the following email to the Associate to the Honourable Justice Farrell: 
 
We are the solicitors for Mr Adam Grimley who is the appointed attorney under an Enduring Power of Attorney 
granted by the First Defendant (“EPOA”). On 1 December 2020, we filed a notice of acting – change of lawyer on 
behalf of the First Defendant. 
 
We refer to the Orders made by the Court on 27 November 2020, and in particular, order 1 which requires the First 
Defendant’s former solicitor, Ms Jenny Williamson, to notify the plaintiff and the Court whether she considers she is 
able to appear on behalf of the First Defendant by 4pm on 4 December 2020. We anticipate that Ms Williamson has 
this afternoon given the required notification of her position, but we also consider it appropriate that we also advise 
the Plaintiff and the Court of our position. 
 
On 3 December 2020, Mr Grimley lodged with the Queensland Civil & Administrative Tribunal (“QCAT”) an 
application seeking a declaration, on an urgent basis, as to the validity of the EPOA. Draft submissions in support of 
the application were shared with the Plaintiff yesterday, and the Plaintiff has been provided with a copy of the 
application. 
 
We confirm that it is our intention to continue to act for Mr Grimley in relation to the Proceeding, subject to the 
validation of the EPOA by QCAT. While it is uncertain whether QCAT will have determined the matter by 8 December 
2020 when this matter is next listed before this Court, it is our intention to appear before the Court on that day with 
Mr Sulan of Counsel, at least on a provisional basis. In this regard, we acknowledge receipt of your email to the 
parties of yesterday.  
 
Regards 
 
 
Scott Harris 
Partner 

Hogan Lovells 
 
Level 17 
20 Martin Place 
Sydney NSW 2000 
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Direct:  +61 2 9093 3510 

Tel: +61 2 9093 3500  

Fax: +61 2 9093 3559  

Mobile: +61 415 172 162 

Email: scott.harris@hoganlovells.com
  www.hoganlovells.com  
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Wiggins, Evy

From: Harris, Scott
Sent: 04 December 2020 15:55
To: Associate FarrellJ
Cc: Wiggins, Evy; Emman Farroukh; Nicolette Bearup; Marina Kofman
Subject: NSD1220/2020 - Caddick & Anor ats ASIC

Dear Associate, 
 
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
able to appear on behalf of the First Defendant by 4pm on 4 December 2020. We note that Ms Williamson has this 
afternoon given the required notification of her position, but we also consider it appropriate that we also advise the 
Plaintiff and the Court of our position. 
 
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
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T  +61 2 9093 3500 

F  +61 2 9093 3559 

www.hoganlovells.com  

4 December 2020 

 
 

By email: Emman.Farroukh@asic.gov.au  

 

Ms Emman Farroukh 

Senior Specialist – Criminal Law, Chief Legal Office 

Australian Securities and Investments Commission 

Level 5, 100 Market Street 

Sydney NSW 2000 

Scott Harris  
scott.harris@hoganlovells.com 

 

Our ref 102661 

 

 

 

Dear Ms Farroukh 

NSD1220/2020 - CADDICK & ANOR ATS ASIC ("PROCEEDING") 

We refer to the Notice of Acting – Change of Lawyer served on 1 December 2020 and confirm 

that we are instructed to act on behalf of Mr Adam Grimley who is empowered to act in relation to 

the first defendant's ("Ms Caddick's") affairs pursuant to an Enduring Power of Attorney dated 15 

September 2016 ("EPOA") (subject to confirmation of its validity). 

Since receiving instructions on 1 December 2020, we have been taking instructions from our 

client, reviewing the documents filed in, and correspondence relating to, the Proceeding, and 

have lodged on behalf of Mr Grimley, an application to the Queensland Civil & Administrative 

Tribunal ("QCAT") for a declaration as to the validity of the EPOA. 

We also refer to the Orders made by the Federal Court on 10 November 2020 and, in particular, 

orders 10 and 11 ("Asset Preservation Orders").  

The purpose of this letter is to seek ASIC's consent in relation to Mr Grimley's proposed 

application to vary the Asset Preservation Orders. 

Asset Preservation Orders 

1. The Asset Preservation Orders provide that the Asset Preservation Orders do not prevent 

the first defendant from, inter alia: 

(a) paying ordinary living expenses not exceeding $800 per week (order 11(c)(i)) 

("Living Expenses"); and 

(b) paying or otherwise incurring a liability for costs reasonably incurred, inter alia, in  

the Proceeding (order 11(a)) ("Legal and Associated Costs"). 

2. Mr Grimley, exercising his power under the EPOA, intends to make an application to the 

Court on behalf of Ms Caddick to vary the Asset Preservation Orders to provide for, and 
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access to, an amount of Living Expenses which is more reflective of the ordinary living 

expenses of Ms Caddick and her dependants, and also for Legal and Associated Costs. 

Living Expenses 

3. As ASIC is aware, and as deposed in the affidavit of Ms Williamson sworn on 26 

November 2020 in the Proceeding: 

(a)   ("Dover 

  

 

(b) On 11 November 2020, ASIC executed a search warrant at the Dover Heights 

Property and seized the books and records of Ms Caddick, including in relation to 

the Living Expenses;  

(c) Since 5:30am on 12 November 2020, Ms Caddick has been missing, and has not 

made any contact with her family. Her disappearance is being investigated by 

police;  

(d) Access to Ms Caddick's books and records and the frozen assets (in particular, 

bank accounts) is required to pay the Living Expenses; and 

(e) ASIC has not provided our client with an itemised list of the books and records 

seized on 12 November 2020. 

4. ASIC will be aware from its investigations and its review of the documents it has seized 

from the Dover Heights Property that the Living Expenses significantly exceed the amount 

of $800 per week as currently provided for in the Asset Preservation Orders. 

5. Our client accepts that the determination of ordinary living expenses invokes the 

discretion of the Court, but the authorities provide that it would be unjust if a defendant 

was required to reduce their standard of living (including to relinquish their residence or 

withdraw their child from school), in order to secure for what is, at this stage, a claim 

against the defendant (see Cong v Shen [2020] NSWSC 945 and reference to Lloyd J (as his 

Lordship then was) in PCW (Underwriting Agencies) Ltd v Dixon [1983] 2 All ER 158 at 164. 

See also Vneshprombank LLC v Bedzhamov & Ors [2019] EWCA Civ 1992). 

6. We are further instructed that: 

(a) Ms Caddick's husband, Mr Anthony Koletti, does not have assets or funds to 

service the Living Expenses. We are instructed that Mr Koletti was last employed 

on a part time basis as a hairdresser until the Covid-19 lockdown around March 

2020 when Ms Caddick and he determined that, in order to reduce the health risk 

to the family (in circumstances where Ms Caddick was already largely responsible 

for financially supporting the family)  

  

and 

(b) neither Mr Grimley nor Mr Koletti have knowledge of any accounts (other than 

those frozen by the Asset Preservation Order) or other sources of funds to pay the 

Living Expenses or the Legal and Associated Costs. 

7. Our client requires access to, and copies of, the books and records of Ms Caddick that 

evidence the Living Expenses and the bank and credit statements that confirm the 

accounts from which they were paid. We are instructed that, and as most likely identified 
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by ASIC on 11 November 2020, the books and records relating to the Living Expenses 

were: 

(a) electronically stored on Ms Caddick's MacBook; and 

(b) physically stored in Ms Caddick's office in the Dover Street Property, specifically in 

the two banks of filing cabinets and in the storage area under the stair well. 

8. Mr Grimley was given access by police to Ms Caddick's smartphone shortly after her 

disappearance. Based on that limited access, where he was able to review some invoices 

for insurance and utilities, and in consultation with Mr Koletti, he has been able to identify 

a number of the Living Expenses and extrapolate their value.  

9. Mr Grimley has identified that the Living Expenses include at least: 

Dover Heights property and occupants 

(a) Food and groceries; 

(b) Utilities (electricity; gas, phones, water, NBN/wifi etc); 

(c) Medical and dental (in particular for ); 

(d) School fees and school incidentals for  

(e) Insurance (home and contents, health and life and motor vehicle); 

(f) Transport, motor vehicle registration, repairs and fuel; 

(g) Loan repayments – while these payments are $19,000 per month, currently no 

payments are due until March 2021; 

Edgecliff property and occupants 

(h) Loan repayments (the property is registered in Ms Caddick's name and she is the 

borrower under the loan facility); 

(i) Body corporate fees, electricity and landlord insurance; 

(j) Day to day living expenses of Ms Caddick's parents who reside in the Edgecliff 

property in relation to which they receive a monthly payment. 

10. Attached is a schedule which records certain of the Living Expenses. The schedule 

indicates that the Living Expenses are $80,531 for the three month period from 10 

November 2020 to 10 February 2021, or $26,843 per calendar month. The schedule does 

not contain the entirety of Ms Caddick's actual living expenses. 

11. Obviously, for the reasons explained above, Mr Grimley and Mr Koletti are not able to 

produce most of the documents which support the Living Expenses as outlined in the 

schedule, and the accounts from which they were paid.  

12. Our client seeks to agree with ASIC a regime as set out in the attached proposed orders 

varying the Asset Preservation Orders ("Proposed Asset Preservation Orders 

Variation") by which: 

(a) ASIC identifies and account(s) from which Mr Grimley can withdraw the Living 

Expenses (and Legal and Associated Expenses); 
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(b) access to the nominated account(s) is given to Mr Grimley to withdraw the Living 

Expenses (and Legal and Associated Expenses) and in this regard the amount of 

$53,686 is required to cover the Living Expenses for the two month period from 10 

November 2020 to 8 January 2021 (with monthly withdrawals thereafter, subject 

to further order of the Court); 

(c) access and copies are given to Mr Grimley in relation to Ms Caddick's books and 

records; 

(d) liberty is given to Mr Grimley to apply to the Court for a further variation of the 

Proposed Asset Preservation Orders Variation following his review of Ms 

Caddick's books and records. 

13. Please let us know if ASIC consents to the Proposed Asset Preservation Orders Variation 

in relation to the Living Expenses. 

Legal and Associated Costs 

14. As a result of the commencement of the Proceeding by ASIC and the Asset Preservation 

Orders, Mr Grimley, in his representative capacity on behalf of Ms Caddick, has been 

required to retain legal representation to provide legal advice and to appear in the 

Proceeding. 

15. Mr Grimley's Legal and Associated Costs in relation the advice and legal representation 

are estimated to be, up to and including 8 December 2020, $55,000 comprised as follows: 

(a) $25,000 in relation to Williamson & Associates and Counsel (plus GST); 

(b) $25,000 in relation to Hogan Lovells and Counsel (plus GST). 

16. It is difficult at this stage to estimate Mr Grimley's Legal and Associated Costs beyond 8 

December 2020, but a reasonable estimate is $55,000 for the two-month period from 8 

December 2020 to 10 February 2020. 

17. We refer to the attached Proposed Asset Preservation Orders Variation by which order 

11(a) of the Asset Preservation Orders is proposed to be varied. Please let us know if 

ASIC consents to the Proposed Asset Preservation Orders Variation in relation to Legal 

and Associated Costs. 

Access to other documents 

18. Mr Grimley has very limited insight into what books and records were seized by ASIC, 

and no itemised list of same. An illegible property seizure record has been provided by 

ASIC.  

19. Mr Grimley repeats the request made in Ms Williamson's letter of 25 November 2020 for: 

(a) a detailed and complete list of all material seized from the Dover Heights Property; 

(b) (urgently) the return, or at least access to and copies of,  

 Given the current 

uncertainties arising from Ms Caddick's disappearance, it is imperative that the 

 is not further prejudiced by ASIC withholding these records (and Mr 

Grimley reserves all rights of Ms Caddick's and n this regard); 

(c) details of the measures taken by ASIC and/or the AFP to secure Ms Caddick's 

assets and books and records which are now in their possession; and 
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(d) the return of all material seized on 11 November 2020 which does not fall within 

the scope of the search warrant. 

We look forward to hearing from you. 

In the meantime, our client reserves all rights. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Scott Harris  
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Wiggins, Evy

From: Harris, Scott
Sent: 07 December 2020 13:20
To: Emman Farroukh
Cc: Nicolette Bearup; Marina Kofman; Wiggins, Evy
Subject: NSD1220/2020 - Caddick & Anor ats ASIC
Attachments: Caddick - Copy of Dover Heights Budget v7 Inc Edgecliff  Streamlined (Re....pdf

Dear Ms Farroukh 
 
We refer to our letter of 4 December 2020, and in particular the schedule of the Living Expenses that was attached 
to the letter.  
 
We now attach a revised schedule of the Living Expenses. Based on that revised schedule, the Living Expenses are 
$64,836 for the three-month period from 10 November 2020 to 10 February 2021, or $21,612 per calendar month.  
 
We also refer to our telephone discussion this morning and note your indication that ASIC is still considering its 
position in relation to our correspondence and will revert to us later this afternoon. We note that, in his email of 3 
December 2020, the Associate to the Honourable Justice Farrell requested that “any further documents to be relied 
upon at the hearing (including proposed orders or documents that would ordinarily be handed up during the 
hearing) should be provided electronically to chambers via this email address by 3 pm on Monday, 7 December 
2020.” We foreshadow that, in the circumstances, we may need to inform the Associate that further time may be 
required to provide the documents upon which our client will rely. 
 
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
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